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October 25, 2017 

 

 

SUBJECT: Letter of Clarification No. 7 for Request for Proposal No. S72-T26318 for Background 

Investigation Services for the Houston Human Resource Department 

    

TO: All Prospective Proposers: 

 

This Letter of Clarification (LOC) is issued for the following reasons: 

 

• Response to Vendor Questions 

 

1. Question: Section 2.1.   You indicated that the volume will be 
225 per month.  Can you share what numbers may 
be submitted on a daily, weekly basis or will there 
be volume submittals, say 30, 50 or more? 

COH Response: Between 1-10 per day and volume batches 
when there are mass hiring/promotion events 
in particular months. 

2. Question: Section 2.4    You specifically note a minimum of 3 
attempts for verifications, what are your 
expectations in terms of documentation? 

COH Response: Written/electronic statement of who you 
attempted to contact for verification, why 
verification failed, type of contact and the 
dates of each contact. 

3. Question: Section 2.5    The RFP indicates a 3 day 
turnaround.  In some cases, due to factors outside 
our control, particularly for education and 
employer verifications, this may take more than 3 
days.  How do you want these instances 
handled?  (for instance, HISD-Houston 
Independent School District- Inactive Records  for 
GRADUATION VERIFICATION has a turnaround 
policy of 2 weeks or more—you may get it sooner 
but maybe not). 

COH Response: Please notify us within 3 day if the verification 
will take more than 3 days, why and expected 
completion date. 

http://purchasing.houstontx.gov/
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4. Question: Section 3.1.1.    With regards to employment 
verification, you ask for performance evaluations, 
attendance records and disciplinary actions.  Can 
you tell me whether the City of Houston would 
provide this data on a former employee that is now 
a job applicant for another firm and this is asked of 
them in the employment verification 
process?  From our experience, due to liability 
reasons, they will not release this data.  Can you 
comment on this question and statement 

COH Response: The City of Houston provides employment and 
salary information on former employees 
applying for another firm through The Work 
Number. However, being a government entity, 
we are subject to “public information/open 
records requests”, so we also provide 
additional employment data if request via that 
mechanism.  

5. Question: Section- 3.1.5     We are not clear whether the City 
will be furnishing   DD214’s of applicants or 
whether you expect the vendor to obtain the 
DD214?  Please clarify.  Further, DD214’s—if 
obtained by the vendor—may not be available in 3 
days.  Can you comment on this? 

COH Response: The City will furnish the DD214. 

6. Question: Section -2.2.   The term “Nationwide Search” 
means several different things to several different 
entities.  The definition of “nationwide search” may 
be 1 thing to Company A, another to Company B 
and something else to the City of 
Houston.  Because there are so many variables in 
the term and definition of “nationwide search”, how 
will the evaluation committee weigh these 
important differences?   
(For instance, database and “mined criminal 
history data can be far different than other criminal 
history search processes).  Can you comment and 
elaborate? 

COH Response: The evaluation committee would like to see 
your firm’s definition of “nationwide search”. 
The City of Houston is interested in the 
applicant’s criminal conviction history in the 
State of Texas as well as all other states in the 
United States of America if possible.   

7. Question: Who is your current provider for criminal 

background checks? Please provide your 

current pricing, if possible. 

COH Response HR currently uses the Houston Police 
Department’s fingerprinting division to collect 
and run the finger prints of applicants selected 
for hire through their databases free of charge. 
We also use the Harris County website free of 
charge. 
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8. Question: 
Are there any pain points with your current 
provider? 

COH Response: Harris County does not provide a nationwide 
search. 

9. Question: Why are you evaluating new providers for 
background investigation services? 

COH Response: At some point in 2018 the Houston Police 
Department will no longer have the ability to 
collect and run finger print checks for HR. We 
are also looking for more consistency across 
all civilian hiring processes related to all 
background verifications. 

10. Question: Will preference be given to providers that are 

accredited (not just a member) by the 

National Association of Professional 

Background Screeners (NAPBS)? 

COH Response: All factors submitted will be reviewed and 
considered by the evaluation committee. 

11. Question: 
As a privately held company, financial 

information is considered highly confidential in 

nature, and it is our preference not to include this 

type of data during the RFP process. May 

vendors submit letters from their banking 

institution and certified public accountant 

attesting to their financial strength in lieu of the 

requested financial statements? If selected as a 

finalist, we would be happy to provide you with 

the requested financial information upon the 

completion of a mutual nondisclosure 

agreement. 

COH Response: Yes, you may send information from your 
Certified Public Accountant, that is along the 
lines of Audited Statements that are allowed 
for verification. If selected as an awarded 
vendor, the City may ask for additional 
documents. 

12. Question: Please clarify if Section 2.9 Financial Stability 
needs to be sealed in a separate envelope, or if the 
information should be included along with the other 
RFP material.  In the Pre-Proposal Power Point, 
under “Proposal Content Requirements – 10.0 
Financial” it is stated that the financial stability 
response needs to be sealed, whereas in the RFP 
Terms & Conditions, under Section 2.0 
“Submission Requirements”, it is not 
expressed.  Only section 2.15 Price Proposal 
states that the information should be sealed in a 
separate envelope.  

COH Response: Please provide financials in a sealed envelope 
by itself. 

13. Question: 
What ATS are you currently using? 
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COH Response: Neogov 

14. Question: Is your current provider already integrated 

with the Applicant Tracking System (ATS) 

referenced in section 5.3.3? 

COH Response: No 

15. Question: What type and version is your current ATS? 

COH Response: Web-based Neogov, version not specified. 

16. Question: Regarding the requested integration: please 

elaborate on the level of data exchange you are 

seeking (e.g., order placement, completion 

status, etc.). 

COH Response: Please provide a description of what you can 

offer related to integration solutions.  

17.  What would the expected timeline be for an ATS 

integration? 

COH Response: TBD 

18. Question Per section 5.3.3.3: Please clarify what is 

expected for the approval/disapproval process 

COH Response: Approvals would be notifications of 

successfully verified background checks and 

the output data. Disapprovals would be 

notifications of unverified background checks 

and information as to why the verification was 

unsuccessful. 

19. Question: On Exhibit VIII (Price Proposal), please clarify 

what you mean by "File Refreshing, Updating 

COH Response: When new file information is available 

20. Question: On Exhibit VIII (Price Proposal), please indicate if 

you'd like to see costs for integration within the 

product implementation line item 

COH Response: Yes, confirmed 

21. Question: 
On Exhibit VIII (Price Proposal), please clarify 

what you are looking for in terms of "Lifetime" 

County Criminal searches. Are you looking for 

a current county of residence search and then 

an additional price per county? 

COH Response: Current county plus all other historical 

counties of residence with additional cost per 

county. 

22. Question: On Exhibit VIII (Price Proposal), please confirm 

that you want to see ONE cost per county, 

regardless of the county, with no additional fees 

COH Response: Yes, confirmed 

23. Question: On Exhibit VIII (Price Proposal), please confirm 

that you are looking for ONE county civil search 

for the current county of residence 

COH Response: Yes, confirmed 
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If you have any additional questions or further clarification needed you may contact Yvette Smith at 

yvette.smith@houstontx.gov or 832-393-8765. 

 

Thank you,  

 

Yvette Smith 
Senior Procurement Specialist 
Strategic Procurement Department 
832-393-8765 
Yvette.smith@houstontx.gov 
910 Louisiana Street Floor # 43 
Houston, Texas 77002  
 

When issued, Letter(s) of Clarification shall automatically become a part of the solicitation documents and 

shall supersede any previous specification(s) and/or provision(s) in conflict with the Letter(s) of 

Clarification. All revisions, responses, and answers incorporated into the Letter(s) of Clarification are 

collaboratively from both the Strategic Procurement Division and the applicable City Department(s). It is 

the responsibility of the bidder/respondent to ensure that it has obtained all such letter(s). By submitting a 

bid on this project, bidders/respondents shall be deemed to have received all Letter(s) of Clarification and 

to have incorporated them into this solicitation and resulting bid. Furthermore, it is the responsibility of 

each Contractor to obtain any previous Letter of Clarification associated with this solicitation. 
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